/E
,0 7/ SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Q’/ WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

111171 ———"

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

For the month of September, 2002

Bank of Montreal
(Translation of registrant's name into English)

1 First Canadian Place
Toronto, Ontario_ M5X 1A1
(Address of principal executive offices)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant files or will file annual reports
under cover of Form 20-F or Form 40-F.

Form 20-F Form 40-F_X

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant by furnishing the information
contained in this Form is also thereby furnishing the information to the Commission
pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

Yes No._ X

If "Yes" is marked, indicate below the file number assigned to the registrant in
connection with Rule 12g3-2(b): 82-

PROCESSED

SEp 23 2002

~ THOMSON
FINANCIAL




Third Quarter Report 2002

I am pleased to present Bank of Montreal’s Third Quarter
2002 Report to Shareholders.

Tony Comper, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
August 27, 2002

Annual Meeting 2003
The next Annual Meeting of Shareholders will be held on Tuesday,
February 25, 2003 in Ottawa, Ontario,

During the quarter, Bank of Montreal announced a new unified
branding approach that will link all of the organization’s member
companies. Bank of Montreal, together with its subsidiaries, will
now be known as BMQ Financial Group. As such, in this document,
the names BMO and BMO Financial Group mean Bank of Montreal.

For the period ended July 31, 2002 BMO 9 Financial GI'Ollp




Financial Highlights

For the three months ended For the nine months ended
Change from Change from
July 31, April 30, January 31, October 31, July 31, July 31, July 31, july 31, July 31,
(Canadian $ in millions except as noted) 2002 2002 2002 2001 2001 2001 2002 2001 2001
Income Statement Highlights
Tota! revenue (teb) (a) $ 2,143 S 2222 5 2205 5 1951 & 2,234 (4n%mw $ 6570 S 6,912 (4.9)%
Provision for credit losses 160 320 180 546 117 373 660 434 52.3
Non-interest expense 1,488 1,476 1,462 1,449 1,421 47 4,426 4,222 49
Net income 346 301 372 4 444 (22.0) 1,019 1,467 (30.5)
Common Share Data (5) (b)
Diluted earnings per share $ 065 S 057 S 071 S 000 $ 083 §$ (0.18) $ 193 § 266 S (0.73)
- excluding non-recurring items 0.68 0.57 0.71 0.19 0.83 (0.15) 1.96 2.29 (0.33)
Diluted cash earnings per share 0.70 0.59 0.75 0.06 0.88 (0.18) 2.04 2.80 (0.76)
- excluding non-recurring items 0.72 0.59 0.75 0.25 0.88 (0.16) 2.06 2.43 (0.37)
Dividends declared per share 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.28 0.28 0.02 0.90 0.84 0.06
Baak value per share 20.74 20.29 2011 19.69 20.44 030 20.74 20.44 0.30
Closing share price 35.26 37.68 36.00 33.86 40.85 (5.59) 35.26 40,85 (5.59)
Total market value of common shares ($ billians) 17.3 18.5 17.6 16.6 20.7 (3.4) 17.3 20.7 (3.4)
As at
Change from
July 31, April 30, January 31, October 31, July 31, July 31,
2002 2002 2002 2001 2001 2001
Balance Sheet Highlights
Assets $250,113  $240,008  $2359,440 $239,409 5 230,203 8.6%
toans 138,643 138,149 136,067 136,829 136,693 1.4
Deposits 159,200 160,359 154,758 154,290 151,003 5.4
Commmon shareholders’ equity 10,199 9,957 9,851 9,632 10,374 (1.7)
For the three months ended For the nine manths ended
July 31, April 30, January 31, October 31, July 371, july 31, July 31,
2002 2002 2002 2001 2001 2002 2001
Primary Financial Measures (x) (v (0)
Average annual five year total shareholder return 7.4 11.6 12.5 14.3 239 7.4 23.9
Diluted earnings per share growth (21.7) (48.2) (2.7) (100.0) 20.3 (27.4) 11.3
- excluding non-recuriing items (18.1) (25.0) 1.4 (75.0) 239 (14.4) 6.5
Diluted cash earnings per share growth (20.5) (48.7) (2.6) (93.3) 20.5 (27.1) 12.4
- excluding non-recurring items (18.2) (26.3) 0.0 (68.8) 239 (15.2) 8.0
Return on equity 129 11.6 14.5 (0.4) 16.8 13.0 18.6
~ excluding non-recurring items 13.5 11.6 14.5 3.8 16.8 13.2 15.9
Cash return on equity 13.8 12.2 15.2 0.7 17.8 13.7 19.5
- excluding non-recurring items 14.4 12.2 15.2 4.3 17.8 13.9 16.9
Net economic profit (NEP) growth (54.6) (88.2) (21.4) (+100) 48.9 (64.8) 23.7
Revenue growth (4.1) (10.5) 0.6 9.7 6.6 . (4.9) 6.3
- excluding non-recurring items (4.1) 12 2.6 (1.2) 7.5 (0.1) 4.7
Non-interest expense-to-revenue ratio 69.4 66.4 66.3 74.2 63.6 67.4 61.1
- excluding non-recurring items 68.4 66.4 663 68.1 63.6 67.0 64.2
Provision for credit losses as a % of average
loans and acceptances 0.44 0.87 0.49 1.49 0.32 0.60 0.39
- excluding non-recurring items 0.44 0.87 0.49 1.49 0.32 0.60 0.30
Gfoss impaired loans and acceptances as a % of
equity and aliowance for ¢redit losses 13.55 14.19 14.64 1417 12.55 13.55 12,55
Cash and securities-to-total assets ratio 24.2 26.0 25.2 231 25.6 24.2 25.6
Tier 1 capital ratio 8.72 8.61 8.87 8.15 8.84 8.72 8.84
(redit rating AA- AA- AA- AA- AA- AA- AA-
Other Financial Ratios (w except as noted) (b ()
Total shareholder return - twelve month (11.0) 10.4 (9.3) (1.2) 32.0 (11.0) 320
Dividend yield 3.4 3.2 33 33 2.7 3.4 2.7
Price-to-earnings ratio (times) 18.0 17.5 133 12.4 11.4 18.0 11.4
Market-to-book value times) 1.70 1.86 1.79 1.72 2.00 1.70 2.00
Net economic profit (s miliions) 84 42 115 (249) 184 241 682
Return on average assets 0.55 0.51 0.60 0.01 0.75 0.55 0.81
- excluding non-recurring items 0.58 0.51 0.60 0.18 0.75 0.56 0.70
Net interest margin 1.95 2.02 2.07 1.94 2.09 2.01 1.90
Other income as a % of total revenue 43.2 46.0 41.6 38.4 449 43.6 50.2
- excluding non-recurring items 43.2 46.0 41.6 435 449 43.6 47.7
Expense growth 4.7 5.2 4.6 8.9 7.2 4.9 7.5
- excluding non-recurring items 3.1 5.2 4.6 55 7.2 4.3 7.5
Total capital ratio 12.25 12.48 12.93 12.12 12.60 12.25 12.60
Tier 1 capital ratio - U.S. basis 8.30 7.76 8.32 7.87 8.43 8.30 8.43
Equity-to-assets ratio 5.3 5.4 S4 5.1 5.6 53 5.6
All ratigs in this report are based on unraunded numbers corporations caution readers that earnings as adjusted for such items do not have standardized
(a) Reported on a taxable equivalent basis (teb). meanings under generaily accepted accounting principles and are unlikely to be comparable to

(b Refer to the “Effects of Non-Recurring Items” seclion in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis similar measures used by other companies.

of Results of Operations for details on non-recurring items. Securities regulators require that (¢) For the period ended, or as at, as appropriate.




Financial and Operating Overview

t Operating Highlights

= Net income of $346 million, diluted cash EPS' of $0.70 and diluted EPS
of 50.65

» Excluding non-recurring items’, net income of $360 million, diluted cash
EPS of $0.72 and diluted EPS of $0.68

* Revenue declines four per cent, affected by investment write-downs
that reduce net income $98 million and EPS by $0.20

« Strong revenue growth in Personal and Commercial Client Group with
net income up 22 per cent year-over-year and 11 per cent from Q2 as
trend of increasing volumes continues

N

« Acquisitions drive 20 per cent increase in Private Client Group revenues
in a difficult market. Client retention remains strong and Harrisdirect
integration of (SFBdirect completed

« Expenses rise three per cent excluding non-recurring items but progress

continues on cost management as expenses decline three per cent

excluding acquisitions

Progress on credit quality in Q3 as provisions for credit losses and

impaired loans decline. Expected annual loan fcsses remain unchanged

at $775 to $825 million

« Targeted annual cash EPS growth and cash ROE remain unchanged

J

Retail and business banking performance in both Canada and the
United States continued to improve in the third quarter of 2002 due
to strong depasit and lending growth. However, investment write-
downs and weak revenues in capital markets businesses affected
overall results for BMO Financial Group (BMO).

On a reported basis, BMO earned net income of $346 million,
diluted earnings per share of $0.65 and a return on equity af 12.9 per
cent for the third quarter ended July 31, 2002. Excluding this quarter’s
$23 million of non-recurring CSFBdirect (now part of Harrisdirect)
acquisition-related costs, earnings per share were $0.68, return on
equity was 13.5 per cent and cash earnings per share were $0.72.
Excluding non-recufring items, net income was $3560 million, a decline
of 19 per cent from the third quarter a year ago but up 19 per cent
from the second quarter.

Results were affected by net investment securities losses of
$116 million (572 million after-tax). This consisted of write-downs
of $158 million (598 million after-tax), net of realized gains of $42
million (526 million after-tax). Write-downs included $56 million
(534 million after-tax) related to BMQ’s equity investments in its
own collateralized bond obligations (CBOs) and a $27 miflion (516
million after-tax) charge against WorldCom, Inc. bonds. The write-
down on (BOs reduced earnings in the quarter by $0.07 per share.
The equity investment in CBOs has now been fully written-off.

“Our retail and business banking operations in Canada and the
U.S. generated strong earnings growth in the third quarter,” said
Tony Comper, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, BMO Financial

Financial Highlights

Group when results were released on August 27, 2002. “However,
overall performance was below our expectations due to investment
write-downs and weak revenues in market-sensitive businesses.
Nonetheless, earnings increased by 19 per cent from the second
quarter, helped by lower provisions. And there are encouraging
signs of a performance lift in upcoming quarters as our persever-
ance in imptementing our transnational growth strategy, while con-
tinuing to contain costs, positions us well for the future.”

Compared to the second quarter, excluding non-recurring items,
net income rose $59 million or 19 per cent. The improvement was
attributable to a $160 million ($106 million after-tax) reduction in the
required provision for credit losses and stronger Canadian retail and
business banking performance. Improved trading gains were maore
than offset by higher investment securities losses, while the second
quarter had also benefited from corporate loan securitization revenues.

Year-to-date net income declined $448 million on a reported
basis and $236 million after excluding the effect of non-recurring
items, the most notable of which were last year's $272 million
after-tax gains on safes of BMO's investment in Bancomer. Much
stronger performance in retail and business banking was more than
offset by higher provisions for credit losses and lower whaolesale
banking revenues in the weaker capital markets environment.
Increased investment losses also contributed to the decline while
year-to-date net income benefited from the discontinuance of amor-
tization of goodwill and mare favourable income tax rates and tax
benefits in fiscal 2002.

Reported (s milions, except per share data and as noted) Q3-2002 Increase/(Decrease) vs. Q3-2001  increase/(Decrease) vs. Q2-2002 YTD-2002 Increase/(Decrease) vs. YTD-2001
Revenues (teb) $2,143 S 9N (4)% S (79) (%  $6,570 S (342) (5)%
Provision for credit losses 9 160 S 43 37% $ (160) (50)% $ 660 § 226 52%
Non-interest expenses $1,488 Y 5% S 12 1%  $4,426 § 204 5%
Net income $ 346 5 (98) (22)% $ 45 15%  $1,019 S (448) (31)%
Return on equity 12.9% (3.9)% 1.3% 13.0% (5.6)%
Cash return on equity’ 13.8% (4.0)% 1.6% 13.7% (5.8)%
Earnings per share - diluted (5) $ 0.65 $ (0.18) (22)% $ 0.08 14% $ 1.93 $ (0.73) (27)%
Cash earnings per share - diluted (' $ 0.70 $ (0.1 (20)% S 0.1 19% § 2.04 S (0.76 (27)%
Excluding non-recurring items’

Revenues (teb) $2,143 5 (o) (4)% S (79) (®%  $6,570 ) -
Provision for credit losses $ 160 S 43 37% S (160) (50)% $ 660 § 326 98%
Non-interest expenses $1,465 S 44 3% S (1) (M%  $4,403 $ 181 4%
Net income $ 360 S (34) (19)% $ 59 19%  $1,033 $ (236) (19)%
Return on equity 13.5% (3.3)% 1.9% 13.2% (2.7)%
Cash return on equity 14.4% (3.4)% 2.2% 13.9% (3.0)%
Earnings per share - diluted 5 $ 0.68 $ (0.15) (18)% S 0.11 19% $ 1.96 $ (0.33) (14)%
(Cash earnings per share - diluted () $ 0.72 $ (0.16) (18)% S 0.13 22% % 2.06 $ (0.37) (15)%

" Adjustments to derive cash results and results excluding non-recurring iterns and comments on the use of these measures are outlined in the “ffects of Non-Recurring Items” table.
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Excluding acquisitions, expenses were reduced $43 million or
three per cent from the third quarter of last year as BMO continues
Its focus an expense management. On a similarly adjusted basis,
expenses were reduced from the secand quarter, notwithstanding
that there were three more calendar days this quarter.

Gross impaired loans declined $93 mitlion from the second quar-
ter despite the designation of $312 million of loans to six of the
operating companies of Adelphia Group as impaired. These loans are
considered adequately secured and no significant loss is anticipated,
although results reflect a modest pravision for two of the loans. The
decline in gross impaired loans was also reffective of write-offs in
the corporate loan portfolio, particularly in the telecom sector. New
impaired loan formations were slightly lower than in the second
quarter, notwithstanding the designation of the Adelphia loans.
Excluding the Adelphia loans, new impaired loan formations in the
quarter were at their lowest level of the past two years.

Provisions for credit losses totalled $160 million for the quarter
and $660 million year-to-date. This quarter’s provisions were down
$160 million from the second quarter but were up $43 million from
the third quarter of last year. BMQ continues to anticipate that its
provision for credit losses will approximate $775 million to $825
million for the year, representing a range of about 55 basis paints of
average net loans and acceptances (including securities purchased
under resale agreements).

The annual targets of cash EPS growth of 8 to 12 per cent and
cash ROE of 14 to 15 per cent are considered achievable but will
require higher levels of earnings in the fourth quarter of the year.
Achieving the targets will require better performance than in the
third quarter from Investment Banking Group and cantinued revenue
growth in retail and business banking. BMO also anticipates achiev-
ing its annual target of Tier 1 capital of at least 8.0 per cent.

-

Annual Targets for 2002, Excluding Non-Recurring Items

Performance to july 31, 2002

» Achieve cash EPS growth of 8 to 12 per cent for the year.

- Achieve a cash ROE of 14 to 15 per cent for the year.

» Maintain an annual provision for credit losses in the range of 40 to S0
basis points of average net loans and acceptances {including securities
purchased under resale agreements). On April 25th, BMO announced
an increase to its estimate of its annual provision for credit losses to
$775 to $825 million, or in a range of about 55 basis points for the
12 months of fiscal 2002.

» Maintain a Tier 1 capital ratio of at least 8.0 per cent.

N

+ 15.2 per cent decline. (Achievement of the annual target therefore requires
cash EPS of $0.84 to 50.94 in the fourth quarter of 2002, compared with
$0.25 in the fourth quarter of 2001.)

+ 13.9 per cent annualized

+ 60 basis points annualized

« 8.72 per cent

Economic Outlook

Growth in the Canadian economy is expected to remain strong in
the year ahead as a result of continuing low interest rates and a
weak currency. Exceptional job growth for the year-to-date will sup-
port incomes and spending. Bemand for interest-sensitive goods,
such as housing and motor vehicles, should remain elevated, but
will likely ease from near record levels of activity. The jobless rate is
expected to trend lower. Canadian interest rates will likely increase
as the expansion progresses. The Canadian dollar is expected to
appreciate against the U.S. dollar in response to supportive interest-
rate differentials and trade flows. While growth in the U.S. economy

Operating Group Net Income

has weakened in the summer, activity should pick up in the fall in
response to past reductions in interest rates and income taxes.
Nonetheless, U.S. interest rates are projected to remain low for the
balance of the year, as the economy is vulnerable to recent weak-
ness in labour and equity markets. Should the U.S. economy under-
perform our expectations, Canada’s economic expansion would
be less robust than anticipated. Activity in capital markets has
not kept pace with the improved economic conditions in Canada,
but should increase in both Canada and the United States as the
economy gathers strength.

Reported (s millions, except a5 noted) Q3-2002 increase/(Decrease) vs. Q3-2001  Increase/(Decrease) vs. Q2-2002 YTD-2002 Increase/(Decrease) vs. YTD-2001
Personal and Commercial Client Group $ 255 5 45 22% 5 26 1M% $ 711 $ 110 18%
Private Client Group 11 (14) (55)% (21) (65)% 82 (28) (25)%
Investment Banking Group 108 (79) (42)% (46) {30)% 445 (128) (22)%
Carporate Support, including Emfisys (28) (50) (+100)% 86 74% (219) (402) (+100)%
BMO Financial Group $ 346 S (98) (22)% S 45 15%  $1,019 $ (448) (31)%
Excluding non-recurring items

(See “Non-Recurring Iterns” table)

Personal and Commercial Client Group $ 255 5 45 22% 5 26 Mm%  § 71 $ 119 20%
Private Client Group 25 - - @) Q2N)% 96 (14) (12)%
investment Banking Group 108 (79) (42)% b(48) (30)% 445 (128) (22)%
Corparate Support, including Emfisys (28) (50) (+100)% 86 74% (219) (213) (+100)%
BMO Financial Group $ 360 $  (84) (19)% 5 59 19%  $1,033 S (236) (19)%

Comparatives have been restated to reflect the second quarter transfer of Cash Management Services business from Emiisys to Investment Banking Group.
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Management’s Responsibility for Financial Information

A rigorous and comprehensive financial governance framework is in
place at Bank of Montreal and its subsidiaries at both the manage-
ment and board levels. Each year, Bank of Montreal's Annual Repart
has contained a statement signed by the Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Cfficer outlining management's responsibility for
financial information contained in the repart. This quarter, we have
included in this quarterly report a statement signed by those same
officers affirming management’s responsibility for financial informa-
tion contained in this report. In addition, on Auqust 14, 2002, the
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of Harris Bank cer-
tified Harris' results under the new U.S. Sarbanes-Oxley Act. Bank of
Montreal will file a certification on a voluntary basis, signed by the
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, following the
release of these results.

Note on Performance Analysis
Management and certain of BMO's stakeholders believe that perform-
ance analysis is enhanced by focusing on cash results and results
excluding non-recurring items. These adjustments and their effects
are outfined in the “Effects of Non-Recurring Items” table. Securities
requlators require that corporations caution readers that earnings as
adjusted for such items do not have standardized meanings under
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and are unlikely to
be comparable to similar measures used by other companies.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations
(MD&A) is attached. A more comprehensive discussion of our busi-
nesses and strategies and objectives can be found in the MD&A in
Bank of Montreal’s 2001 Annual Report, which can be accessed on
BMO’s web site at www.bmo.com/investorrelations.

Statement of Management’s Responsibility for Financial Information

Bank of Maontreal’s management is responsible for presentation and
preparation of the interim consalidated financial statements and
interim Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A).

The interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles
and the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission
in the United States, as applicable. The financial statements also
comply with the provisions of the Bank Act and related requlations,
including the accounting requirements of the Superintendent of
Financial Institutions Canada.

The attached interim MD&A has been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of securities requlators, including Ontario
Securities Commission Rule 51-501, as well as Item 303 of
Regulation 5-K of the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934,

The interim consolidated financial statements and information in
the interim MD&A necessarily include amounts based on informed
judgments and estimates of the expected effect of current events
and transactions with appropriate consideration to materiality. In
addition, in preparing the financial information we must interpret
the requirements described above, make determinations as to the
relevancy of information to be included, and make estimates and
assumptions that affect reported information. The interim MD&A
also includes information regarding the estimated impact of current
transactions and events, sources of liquidity and capital resources,
operating trends, risks and uncertainties. Actual results in the future
may differ materially from our present assessment of this information
because future events and circumstances may not occur as expected.

In meeting our responsibility for the reliability of financial infor-
mation, we maintain and rely on a comprehensive system of inter-
nal control and internal audit, including organizational and
procedural controls and internal accounting controls. Our system of
internal control includes written communication of our palicies and

procedures governing corporate conduct and risk management; com-

prehensive business planning; effective segregation of duties; dele-

gation of authority and personal accountability; careful selection and
training of personnel; and sound and conservative accounting pali-
cies which we reqularly update. This structure ensures appropriate
internal control over transactions, assets and records. We also requ-
larly audit internal controls. These controls and audits are designed
to provide us with reascnable assurance that the financial records
are reliable for preparing interim and annual financial statements
and other financial information, assets are safeguarded against
unauthorized use or disposition, liabilities are recognized and we are
in compliance with all requlatory requirements. In order to provide
their opinion on our annual consolidated financial statements, the
Shareholders” Auditors review our system of internal control and
conduct their work to the extent that they consider appropriate.

The Board of Directors is responsible for reviewing and approving
the interim consolidated financial statements and the financial infor-
mation contained in the interim MD&A and for overseeing manage-
ment’s respansibilities for the presentation and preparation of
financial information, maintenance of appropriate internal controls,
management and control of major risk areas, and assessment of sig-
nificant and related party transactions. The Board delegates these
responsibilities to its Audit and Conduct Review Committees, com-
prised of non-Bank directors, and its Risk Review Committee.

The Shareholders” Auditors and Bank of Montreal's Chief Auditor
have full and free access to the Board of Directars and its commit-
tees to discuss financial reporting and related matters.

’/"‘“‘;1 CrPen Ay e

Tony Comper Karen Maidment
Chairman and Executive Vice President
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer

Canada
Auqust 27, 2002

Canada
August 27, 2002
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Results of Operations and Financial Condition (MD&A)

Operating Overview

Value Measures

Annualized ROE was 12.9 per cent for the third quarter of 2002 and
13.0 per cent year-to-date. Annualized cash ROE was 13.8 per cent
for the quarter and 13.7 per cent year-tg-date. Excluding non-recur-
ring items, annualized cash ROE was 14.4 per cent for the quarter
and 13.9 per cent year-to-date, compared with BMO's annual target
of 14 to 15 per cent.

Diluted EPS of $0.65 for the quarter declined 22 per cent from
the third quarter of last year, while diluted EPS for the year-to-date
of $1.93 declined 27 per cent. Excluding non-recurring items, quar-
terly and year-to-date diluted EPS declined 18 per cent and 14 per
cent, respectively. Diluted cash EPS was $0.72 for the quarter and
$2.06 for the year-to-date periad, excluding non-recurring items.
These represented declines of 18 per cent and 15 per cent, respec-
tively, from the comparable periods in the prior year. Year-to-date
results are below expectations, but BMO is still targeting 8 to 12 per
cent cash EPS growth far the year. The lower than anticipated
results for the year-to-date were largely attributable to higher provi-
sioning for credit losses associated with Teleglobe Inc. loans, net
investment securities losses and weak capital markets conditions.

Net economic profit was $84 million for the quarter and $241
million year-to-date, compared with $184 million in the third quarter
of 2001 and $682 million for the prior year-to-date. The variances
were largely attributable to differences in net income available to
common shareholders, including significant non-recurring income
earned in the prior year-to-date.

The third quarter was a difficult period for equity investors.
Although Bank of Montreal common shares suffered a negative total
return of 5.7 per cent during the quarter, it was the third best per-
formance of Canada’s six major banks and was well above the TSX
Composite total return of negative 13.4 per cent. Year-to-date,
shareholders have earned a total return of 6.7 per cent, the fourth
highest return among Canada‘s major banks and ahead of the TSX
total compaosite return of negative 2.9 per cent.

Net Income

Net income faor the quarter was $346 million, 3 decrease of $98 mil-
lion year-over-year. Excluding acquisition-related costs that have
been categorized as a non-recurring item in the current quarter, net
income for the quarter was $360 millian, 3 decline of $84 million or
19 per cent year-over-year. Net investment securities losses, higher
provisions for credit losses and weak capital markets revenues more
than offset strong growth in retail banking results. ltems categorized
as non-recurring for analysis purposes are detailed for all comparable
periods in the “Effects of Non-Recurring items” table.

Net income increased $45 million or 15 per cent from the second
quarter. Excluding non-recurring items, net income increased $59
million or 19 per cent. The increase was attributable to a $160 million
(5106 million after-tax) reduction in the provision for credit losses,
strong performance in Canadian retail and business banking, improved
trading revenue in wholesale banking and slightly lower expenses.
These were partially offset by higher net investment securities
losses and lower capital markets revenues due to a weak market
environment. The second quarter results had included an increase in
the provision for credit losses assaciated with BCE's announcement
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that it would discontinue its long-term financial support of Teleglobe,
but had benefited from the inclusion of securitization revenue on
the winding-down of BMO's corporate foan securitization vehicle.

Year-ta-date net income declined $448 million on 3 reparted basis
and $236 million after excluding the effect of non-recurring items,
the mast notable of which was last year’s $272 million after-tax gains
on sales of the investment in Bancomer. Much stranger performance
in retail and business banking was more than offset by higher provi-
sions for credit losses, net investment securities fosses and lower
wholesale banking revenues in the weaker capital markets environ-
ment. Comparative performance benefited from the discontinuance
of amortization of goodwill and more favourable income tax rates
and tax benefits in fiscal 2002.

Revenue

BMO Financial Group analyzes revenue on a taxable equivalent basis
(teb), whereby revenues and the provision for income taxes under
generally accepted accounting principles {GAAP) are both increased
by an amount that adjusts revenues on certain tax-exempt securities
to an amount equivalent to what revenues would have been had
they been taxed at the statutory rate. The adjustment was 526 million
for the third quarter, $44 million in the year-ago quarter and

$29 million in the second quarter. The year-to-date adjustment was
$82 million for 2002 and $110 million for 2001.

Revenue of $2,143 million decreased $971 million or four per cent
from the third quarter of last year and $79 million or four per cent
from the second quarter. Year-to-date revenue declined $342 million
from the prior year. Excluding non-recurring revenue of $333 million
in 2001 that included gains on the sales of branches and gains on the
sales of the investment in Bancomer, year-to-date revenue declined
$9 million from the comparable period in 2001.

Revenue growth was favourably affected by the acquisitions of
First National Bank of Joliet (Joliet) and Guardian Group of Funds in the
latter half of 2001 and (SFBdirect (now part of Harrisdirect) in the
second quarter of 2002. Revenue includes three months activities of
(SFBdirect this quarter, up from two months of activities in the second
quarter. Excluding acquired businesses, revenue for the quarter was
eight per cent lower than a year ago and five per cent lower than in
the second quarter. This quarter had three more calendar days than the
secand quarter. Excluding non-recurring items and acquired businesses,
year-to-date revenue declined three per cent from a year 3ago.

Net interest income of $1,217 million was comparable with the
third quarter of last year. Average assets rose $13.3 billion or six per
cent to $247.3 billion. Net interest margins declined by 14 basis points
to 1.95 per cent. Strong volume growth in both (anadian and U.S.
retail and business banking and growth in revenues from acquired
businesses in Private Client Group contributed to improved revenue.
Investment Banking Group net interest income fell due to more
challenging capital markets and a weaker lending environment that
affected both volumes and margins. Retail banking assets rose
$11.3 billion or 12 per cent, while net interest margins were 12 basis
points lower year-over-year as margins declined in both Canada and
the United States.

Net interest income increased $17 million from the second quar-
ter as average assets increased by $3.6 billion, while net interest
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margins declined by 7 basis points. Margins declined by 22 basis points
in U.S. retail and business banking but were unchanged in Canada,
while wholesale banking margins declined. volumes improved in
Canadian retail and business banking but were unchanged in the
U.S. and declined in corporate banking.

Year-to-date, net interest income increased $265 million from 2001.
Net interest margins averaged 2.01 per cent and were up 11 basis
points from the comparable period last year. Average assets of 5246
billion were $3.6 billion higher than the year-ago period. Retail and
business banking margins declined by 8 basis points from the prior
year-to-date to 3.12 per cent, while wholesale banking margins
improved by 8 basis points. The increase in BMQ's overall margins
was driven by changes in asset mix as relatively higher-yielding
retail banking assets grew while relatively lower-yielding wholesale
banking assets were reduced.

Other income of $926 million decreased $77 million from the third
quarter of last year, driven by lower revenues in Investment Banking
Group due to investment securities write-downs and lower trading
revenues. Revenues rase appreciably in Private Client Group, largely
due to acquired businesses. Net investment securities losses of
$116 million were $118 million worse year-over-year. Net realized
gains on sales of $42 million were more than offset by $158 million
of write-downs, including $56 million of write-downs on equity invest-
ments in BMO’s own CBOs, $27 million of write-downs on WorldCom
bonds and write-downs on other industry positions, including tele-
communications. The equity investment in CBOs has now been fully
written-off.

Compared to the second quarter, other income declined $96 million,
driven by lower securitization revenue and a $66 million increase in
net investment securities losses, partially offset by improved trading
gains. Corporate Support revenues of the prior quarter included $57
million of revenues on its corporate loan securitization. The higher
losses on investment securities relate largely to the factors discussed
above. The second quarter had been affected by a $47 million
write-down on CBOs and a write-down on BMO's investment in 724
Solutions Inc.

0n a year-to-date basis, other income declined $607 million.
Excluding non-recurring items in the prior year, other income of
$2,865 million declined by $274 million or nine per cent from the
comparable period a year ago. The decline was driven by weaker
capital market trading-related activities, lower securitization revenues
and weaker investment securities results in the context of the weaker
market and credit environment. These reductions were partially offset
by the effects of acquisitions.

Non-Interest Expenses

Expenses of $1,488 million increased $67 million from the third quarter
of last year. Excluding $23 million of CSFBdlirect acquisition-related
costs categorized as a non-recurring item for analysis, non-interest
expenses rose $44 million or three per cent. Excluding the effects of
acquired businesses, non-interest expenses declined $43 million or
three per cent. The reduction approximated the overall decline in
revenue-based compensation. Expenses declined somewhat in
Canadian retail and business banking and were relatively unchanged
in the United States after adjusting for acquisitions.

Expenses were $12 million higher than in the second quarter.
txcluding non-recurring items, expenses of 51,465 million were
reduced $11 million or one per cent from the second quarter. After also
excluding the impact of acquired businesses, non-interest expenses
fell by $31 million or two per cent. The reduction was due to lower

revenue-based compensation and effective cost management, partially
offset by the effects of three more calendar days in the third quarter,

Year-to-date expenses of $4,426 million were $204 million higher
than in 2001. Excluding the effects of non-recurring items, non-interest
expenses of $4,403 milliocn were $181 million or four per cent higher
than the priar year. After adjusting for the costs of acquireg businesses,
non-interest expenses were essentially unchanged from the priof
year-to-date. Costs of investing in strategic initiatives, which included
expansion of BMO’s North American distribution network and U.S.
wealth management capabilities, higher pension costs and the effects
of a stronger U.S. dollar were offset by lower revenue-based costs
and efforts at cost-containment. Revenue-based compensation costs
declined $59 million.

Excluding non-recurring items, the expense-to-revenue ratio was
68.4 per cent in the third quarter, 4.8 percentage points higher than
in the third quarter of last year. The ratio Is affected by investment
write-downs and other such revenue adjustments. Growth of relatively
higher cost, less capital-intensive wealth management businesses
also affected the ratio.

BMO continues to focus on its expense management program,
which is intended to reduce expense growth, while increasing rev-
enues. The program’s guidelines are designed to protect customer-
related expenses that are essential to increased sales, to protect
strategic initiatives designed to promote future growth and to reduce
other discretionary costs.

GAAP no longer requires amortization of goodwill, but instead
requires that goodwill be subject to a periodic impairment review to
ensure its fair value is equal to or greater than its book value. The
change in accounting increased net income by $14 million in the
third quarter and $41 million year-to-date relative to the compara-
bie periods in 2001. The impairment test required upon adoption of
the new standard was completed in the second quarter and it was
determined that no impairment charge was necessary.

New requirements under GAAP in respect of accounting for stock
options will be applicable in the first quarter of fiscal 2003. At that
time, BMO will begin recognizing compensation expense for new
options granted after October 31, 2002. On this basis, stock option
expense is expected to be in the range of $0.02 to $0.04 per share
in fiscal 2003. If BMO had recognized compensation expense related
to all outstanding stock options this year, reported net income
would have been $12 million lower in the current quarter and $35
million lower year-to-date.

Income Taxes

Excluding non-recurring items, the effective tax rate in the third quarter
was 27.6 per cent, compared with 32.7 per cent in the same period
of the prior year and 25.9 per cent in the second quarter. The 2002

year-to-date tax rate was 28.4 per cent, compared with 33.9 per cent
in 2001.

The provision for income taxes as a percentage of income, exclud-
ing non-recurring items, benefited from the lower statutory tax rate,
lower tax rates in domestic subsidiaries, the use of available losses
carried forward and other tax benefits. As a result, the tax rates for the
third quarter and year-to-date declined from the comparable periods in
the prior year. The third quarter income tax rate increased from the
second quarter due to lower tax initiatives being recognized this period.

The provision for income taxes in the first quarter of last year
included a $25 million non-recurring charge related to a proposed
reduction in the federal income tax rate and its effect on future
tax assets.
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Balance Sheet

Total assets of $250.1 billion increased $10.7 billion from October 31,
2001, Investment securities decreased $2.4 billion to $19.0 billion
due to lower holdings of fixed income securities. Trading securities
increased $8.7 billion to $24.9 billion, largely due to increases in
holdings of Canadian government securities, equities and corporate
debt securities. The fixed income increase reflects improved trading
opportunities and higher levels of equities are attributable to new
product offerings. Net unrealized gains on investment securities of
$228 million decreased $16 million from last year-end.

Net loans and acceptances increased $71.0 billion from October
31, 2001. Loans to businesses and governments declined $4.8 bil-
lion, continuing the trend from the second quarter and reflecting
credit concerns and a lack of capital spending. Residential mort-
gages and consumer instalment and cther personal loans increased
$6.3 billion. The loan portfalio remains well diversified but reflects a
higher proportion of Canadian loans due to growth in residential
mortgages in Canada.

Other assets increased $4.6 billion from Qctober 31, 2001. The
increase related to higher amounts due from dealers and brokers
and sundry receivables, partially offset by lower amounts receivable
on derivatives.

Relative to the second quarter, total assets increased $10.1 bil-
lion due primarily to higher other assets. Amounts due from clients,
dealers and brokers rose approximately $7 billion due in part to the
timing of government bond auctions. Unrealized gains and amounts
received on derivative contracts increased approximately $4 billion
due in part to the effect of long-term interest rate reductions on
client positions. Unrealized gains on securities increased $170 mil-
lion, primarily due to government and other debt securities.

Total liabilities increased $9.7 billion from October 31, 2001 to
$238.4 billion. Deposits increased by 54.9 billion as depasits from
banks declined by $3.7 billion, while deposits frem individuals,
which tend to be mare stable, increased by $6.4 billion. Deposits
from businesses and governments increased $2.2 billion. Deposits
from individuals accounted for 46 per cent of total deposits com-
pared with 44 per cent last year-end.

Securities sold under repurchase agreements of $20.5 billion
increased $3.0 billion and provided partial funding for higher trading
securities positions. Other liabilities increased $1.8 billion to $39.6
billion. An increase in sundry payables was offset in part by a
decrease in amounts payable on derivative contracts. The reduction
in amgunts payable on derivative contracts offset the equivalent
decline in amounts receivable on derivative contracts,

Relative to the second quarter, total liabilities increased $9.9 bil-
lion due primarily to higher other liabilities. Accounts payable and
other liabilities rose $7.8 billion, while unrealized losses and
amounts owed on derivative contracts rase approximately $4.2 bil-
lion. Deposits from banks and from businesses and governments
declined but were largely offset by deposits from individuals.

Risk Management

The third quarter provision for credit losses was $160 million, 3
decrease of $160 million from the second quarter, which included
3 provision of $140 million on BMQ's $163 million loan exposure
to Teleglobe. The provision increased $43 million from a year ago.
The year-to-date provision for credit losses was $660 million,
compared with $434 million in 2001, or $334 million excluding
non-recurring items.
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Year-to-date provisions represent 60 basis points of average net
loans and acceptances, including securities purchased under resale
agreements, expressed on an annualized basis. As announced on
April 25, 2002, BMO expects its annual provision for credit losses to
be $775 million to $825 million, or in a range of about 55 basis
points of average net loans and acceptances. The increase in provi-
sions, originally announced last quarter, was largely due to the need
to provide for $163 million of loan exposure to Teleglobe, resulting
from BCE’s announcement in that quarter of its intention to discon-
tinue long-term financial support.

Provisions for credit losses for fiscal 2001, excluding non-recur-
ring items, represented 60 basis points of average net loans and
acceptances. In 2001, provisions were increased significantly in the
fourth quarter, reflective of the development of recessionary condi-
tions in the United States and weakening economic conditions in
Canada. Provisions for the current quarter and year-to-date, relative
to the comparable periads in 2001, are reflective of the timing of
the development of weakness in the economy over the course of
2001 and the timing of the economic recovery this year.

Gross impaired loans were $2,057 million, compared with $2,150
million at the end of the second quarter and $2,014 million at the
end of {ast year. Net impaired loans totalled $177 million, compared
with %65 million at the end of last year and $55 million at the end
of the second quarter. The ratio of the allowance for credit losses to
gross impaired loans was 51.4 per cent, compared with 97.5 per
cent at the end of the second quarter and 96.8 per cent at the end
of last year. The period-over-period changes outlined above reflect
primarily the designation of loans to Adelphia Group operating com-
panies as impaired and the relatively fow levels of provisions
required for these adequately secured loans. They also reflect $405
million of write-offs in the corporate loan portfolio, particularly in
the telecom sector.

New impaired loan formations totalled $522 million in the cur-
rent quarter, including $312 million of loans to operating companies
of the Adelphia Group. Otherwise, impaired loan formations were in
line with expectations at this point in the credit cycle and were at
their lowest level in over two years. No significant losses are
expected on the Adelphia Group foans although a modest provision
for credit losses was recorded in the guarter.

There were no material loan sales during the quarter. Year-to-
date, BMO has sold $354 million of troubled loans for sales pro-
ceeds of $234 million.

The net loans exposure to cable and telecom companies was
approximately $1.9 billion or 1.4 per cent of total net loans and
acceptances at the end of the third quarter, compared with exposure
of approximately $2.9 billion 3 year ago. We have recorded specific
allowances for credit losses of $108 million on the $555 million of
communications industry loans classified as impaired. Exposures to
the more economically troubled regions of the world remain fim-
ited. Qutstanding loan exposures to borrowers in Argentina totalled
$41 million at the end of the quarter, down from $159 million at
the end of last year. During the second quarter, we recorded 3 $12
million increase to the allowance for designated lesser-developed
countries related to exposures in Argentina.

BMQ's market risk management practices and key measures
were outlined on pages 20 and 21 of the 2001 Annual Report.
Earnings volatility has decreased since year-end, primarily due to
a lengthening of asset maturities in the structural balance sheet.
The lengthening of asset maturities has increased market value
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exposure. Trading and underwriting performance was profitable and
relatively consistent during the quarter and exposures were within
risk tolerances. Trading and underwriting risk has decreased slightly
from fiscal 20071 year-end.

BMO’s liquidity and funding management framewark and its key
measures related to this risk were outlined on page 22 of the 2001
Annual Report. The liquidity and funding position remains sound and
there are no trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties
that are reasonably likely to materially affect it. The core deposit
ratio decreased to 59.3 per cent from 60.0 per cent at the end of
last year, primarily as a3 result of non-core deposit growth exceeding
core deposit growth by $1.2 billion. The cash and securities-to-total
assets ratio increased to 24.2 per cent from 23.1 per cent Iast year-
end, primarily as a result of an increase in trading securities. Total
liquid assets increased $5.2 billion from last year-end to $60.5 bil-
lion, of which liquid assets pledged as collateral decreased to $22.8
billion from $24.0 billion at the end of last year.

Critical Accounting Policies

in December 2001, the United States Securities and Exchange
Commission issued a financial release encouraging companies to
include explanations of thelir critical accounting policies in their
MD&A to increase investor awareness of the sensitivity of financial
statements to the methods, assumptions and estimates that under-
lie their preparation.

The notes to the Bank of Montreal Octaber 31, 20071 consolidated
financial statements contain a summary of significant accounting
policies. In addition, Note 2 to the attached unaudited July 31, 2002
consolidated financial statements provides details of changes to
significant accounting policies since October 31, 2001. The second
quarter MD&A contained a discussion of the two most critical
accounting policies, allowance for credit losses and financial instru-
ments measured at fair value, which are considered particularly
important as they require management to make significant judg-
menis, some of which may relate to matters that are inherently
uncertain. Readers are encouraged to refer to last quarter's MD&A to
review the discussian.

Capital Management

At July 31, 2002, BMO's Tier 1 capital ratio was 8.72 per cent, up
from 8.15 per cent at the end of last year. The increase was due to
increased retained earnings and the issuance of preferred shares
during the period, partially offset by increased goodwill and intangi-

Caution Regarding Forward-looking Statements

ble assets an the acquisition of (SFBdirect (now part of Harrisdirect).
Lower risk-weighted assets also contributed to the increase. The
ratio rose 11 basis points from the second quarter due to increased
retained earnings, which mare than offset the effect of modest risk-
weighted asset growth. The total capital ratio was 12.25 per cent,
compared with 12.48 per cent in the previous quarter and 12.12 per
cent at October 31, 2001. The decline from the second quarter was
attributable to an announced reduction in subordinated debt, as out-
lined below.

On December 20, 2001, Bank of Montreal issued 12 million 5.95
per cent Non-Cumulative Class B Preferred Shares Series 10 for pro-
ceeds of US$300 million.

On April 2, 2002, the organization redeemed its $250 million of
6.05 per cent Series 24 Debentures, due 2007, largely because of
the high yield relative to current market rates.

On July 19, 2002, Bank of Montreal announced that on August
27, 2002 it would redeem all of its $450 million 5.55 per cent
Medium Term Notes, Series A subordinated debt, due 2007. This
action was prompted by the high yield of the securities relative to
current market rates.

Effective july 2, 2002, Bank of Montreal de-listed its cammon
shares from the tondon Stock Exchange. The decision to de-list was
based on the low trading volumes of the shares on this exchange
relative to the cost and effort necessary to maintain the listing.

Credit Rating

Bank of Montreal’s credit rating, as measured by a composite of
Moody's and Standard & Poor's (S&P) senior debt ratings, remains
unchanged at AA-, but with S&P and Moody’s maintaining a nega-
tive outlook. On july 18, 2002, Moody's Investors Service affirmed
Bank of Montreal’s credit ratings but changed its rating outlook to
negative from stable. Moody's indicated that the change in outlook
reflects the challenges faced in curtailing increases in credit costs
stemming from the corporate loan portfolio, which includes expo-
sure to the telecommunications sector. Moody’s said that Bank of
Montreal’s exposure to the telecommunications sector does not con-
stitute a severe concentration risk. Moody’s added, however, that
future losses from the partfolio could result in the need for sizable
increases in loan loss provisions, which would impact earnings per-
formance. Moody's added that if future losses exceed Moody’s
expectations, it could hald future negative rating implications. The
change in outlook is not expected to have a significant impact on
liquidity and funding costs.

This report for the third quarter of 2002 includes forward-looking statements, which are made pursuant to the ‘safe harbor’ provisions of the United States Private
Secyrities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, comments with respect to our objectives, targets,
strategies, financial condition, the results of our operations and our businesses, our outlook for our businesses and for the Canadian and U.S. economies, and risk

management.

By their very nature, forward-fooking statements involve numerous assumptions, inherent risks and uncertainties, both general and specific, and the risk that
predictions and other forward-looking statements will not prove to be accurate. We caution readers of this document not to place undue reliance on these forward-
looking statements as a number of important factors could cause actual future results to differ materially from the plans, objectives, targets, expectations, estimates

and intentions expressed in such forward-locking statements.

The tuture outcomes that relate to forward-looking statements may be influenced by the following factors: fluctuations in interest rates and currency values;
regulatory developments; statutory changes; the effects of competition in the geographic and business areas in which we operate, including continued pricing
pressure on loan and deposit products; and changes in political and economic conditions including, among other things, inflation and technological changes. We
caution that the foregoing list of important factors is not exhaustive and that when relying on forward-looking statements 1o make decisions with respect to Bank of

Montreal, investors and others should carefully consider the foregoing factors as well as other uncertainties and potential events. The Bank does not undertake to
update any forward-looking statement, whether written or oral, that may be made from time to time by or on behalf of the Bank.
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Review of Operating Groups Performance

An analysis of financial results of each operating group is provided,
together with some of their business achievements for the third
quarter of 2002. An analysis of Harris Bank, whase financial resuits
are incorparated within each of the operating groups, is also pro-
vided separately.

Periodically, certain business lines and units within the business
lines are transferred between client groups to more closely align
BMO’s organizational structure and its strategic priorities. All com-
parative figures are restated to give effect to the transfers. In the

second quarter, the Cash Management Services business was trans-
ferred from Emfisys to the tnvestment Banking Group, to align prod-
uct distribution more effectively with broades client coverage. Note
9 to the attached interim consolidated financial statements outlines
how income statement items requiring allocation are distributed
among the cperating groups, including the allocation of the provi-
sion for credit fosses, which is discussed more fully in the Corporate
Support section.

Operating Groups Summary Income Statements and Statistics for Q3-2002 and Year-to-Date 2002

(S millions, except as noted)

Corparate,

Q3-2002 reported P&C PCG 18G incl. Emfisys BMO
Net interest income (teb) S 832 S 143 S 335 S (93) S 1,217
Other income 339 295 202 50 926
Total revenues (teb) 1,171 438 537 (3) 2,143
Provision for credit losses 70 - 56 34 160
Non-interest expense 688 412 336 52 1,488
Income before income taxes and

non-controlling interest in subsidiaries 413 26 145 (89) 495
Income taxes (teb) 158 15 37 (75) 135
Non-controlling interest in subsidiaries - - - 14 14
Net incomne Q3-2002 S 255 S ih $ 108 S (28) $ 346
Net income Q2-2002 $ 229 S 32 S 154 S (114 $ 301
Net income Q3-2001 5 210 5 25 5 187 S 22 5 444
Excluding non-recurring items
Net income Q3-2002 5 255 S 25 S 108 S (28) 5 360
Net income Q2-2002 5 229 $ 32 $ 154 S (114) $ 301
Net income Q3-2001 § 210 N 25 S 187 5 22 5 444
Other statistics - Q3-2002 reported
Net economic profit § 154 S (15 S 4 nm $ 84
Cash return on equity 26.6% 6.4% 7.3% nm 13.8%
Average common equity § 3,795 S 1,461 $ 5,108 nm $ 9,972
Average assets (s billions) S 107.2 3 5.7 S 139.0 nm $ 2473
fFull-time equivalent staff 18,131 5,519 2,149 8,477 34,276
YTD-2002 reported
Net interest income (teb) S 2,440 5 410 $ 1,158 S (303) $ 3,705
Other income 961 854 742 308 2,865
Totat revenues (teb) 3,401 1,264 1,900 5 6,570
Provision for credit losses 211 1 170 278 660
Non-interest expense 2,044 1,123 1,061 198 4,426
Income before income taxes and

non-controlling interest in subsidiaries 1,146 140 669 (471) 1,484
income taxes (teb) 435 58 224 (297) 420
Non-controlling interest in subsidiaries - - - 45 45
Net income Q3-2002 $ 71 S 82 $ 45 S (219) $ 1,019
Net income Q3-2001 S 601 S 110 S 573 S 183 S 1,467
Excluding non-recurring items
Net income Q3-2002 S 711 S 96 S 445 S (219) $ 1,033
Net income Q3-2001 S 592 S 110 S 573 5 (6) $ 1,269
Other statistics ~ YID-2002 reported
Net economic profit S 411 5 7 5 - nm S 241
Cash return on equity 25.0% 11.2% 10.5% nm 13.7%
Average COmMmMOn equity S 3,781 S 1,276 $ 5113 nm $ 9,87
Average assets (s billions) S 1047 5 5.4 $ 1401 nm $  246.0

nm - not meaningful
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Effects of Non-Recurring Items

Reported (S millions, except per share data and as noted) Q3-2002 Q3-2001 Q2-2002 Y10-2002 Y10-2001
Revenues (teb) $ 2,143 § 2,234 5 2,222 $ 6,570 S 6,912
Provision for credit fosses $ 160 S 117 320 $ 660 § 434
Non-interest expenses $ 1,488 S 1,421 S 1,476 S 4,426 S 4,222
Net income $ 346 S 444 5 301 $ 1,019 S 1,467
Amortization of goodwill and intangibles [ 22 S 25 5 15 $ 53 5 74
Cash net income $ 368 S 469 5 316 $ 1,072 § 1,541
Return on equity 12.9% 16.8% 11.6% 13.0% 18.6%
Cash return on equity 13.8% 17.8% 12.2% 13.7% 19.5%
Earnings per share - diluted $ 0.65 5 083 S 057 $ 193 $ 266
Cash earnings per share - diluted $ 070 S 088 $ 059 $ 204 $ 280
Non-interest expense-to-revenue ratio 69.4% 63.6% 66.4% 67.4% 61.1%
Non-recurring items Operating group Q3-2002 032001 Q22002 YTD-2002 YT0-2001
Gains on sales of branches P&t $ - 5 - $ - $ - $ 12
Gain on sale of Bancomer Corp. Support - - - - N
Increased/(Decreased) revenues - - - 333
increased general provision for credit losses Corp. Support - - - - 100
Increased/(Decreased) expenses
(SFBdirect acquisition-related costs PCG 23 - - 23 -
Increased/(Decreased) pre-tax income (23) - - (23) 233
Increased/(Decreased) income taxes
Income taxes on non-recurring items (9) - - (9) 10
Adjustment of future tax asset due to

proposed reduction in rates - - - - 25
Increased/(Decreased) net income S (14) ) - 5 - S (14) 198
Excluding non-recurring items Q3-2002 Q3-2001 Q2-2002 ¥TD-2002 YTD-2001
Revenues (teb) $ 2,143 § 2,234 § 2,222 $ 6,570 S 6,579
Provision for credit fosses $ 160 S 17 S 320 $ 660 S 334
Non-interest expenses $ 1,465 S 1,421 S 1,476 $ 4,403 S 4,222
Net income 5 360 S 444 S 301 $ 1,033 S 1,269
Amortization of goodwill and intangibles $ 22 $ 25 S 15 $ 53 S 74
Cash net income S 382 $ 269 S 316 $ 1,086 § 1,343
Return on equity 13.5% 16.8% 11.6% 13.2% 15.9%
Cash return on equity 14.4% 17.8% 12.2% 13.9% 16.9%
Earnings per share - diluted $ 068 $ 083 $ 057 $ 196 $ 229
Cash earnings per share - diluted $ 072 $ 088 $ 059 $  2.06 § 243
Non-interest expense-to-revenue satio 68.4% 63.6% 66.4% 67.0% 64.2%

BMO's results of operations periodically include non-recusring items. Such items are
generally infrequent, material and quantifiable, and are not expected ta recur in the
near future. They are not considered to be appropriate inclusions in assessing BMO'S
ongoing operations. As a result, trend analysis is considered most relevant when non-
recurring items are excluded from results. in 2007, gains on sales of branches and
Bancomer, the increase in the general provision for credit losses and reduction in value
of future tax assets were classed as non-recurring because they were considered irrequ-
lar and materia! occurrences and in some cases dependent on actions taken by man-
agement that had the potential to affect results significantly. In 2002, CSFBdirect

Personal and Commercial Client Group

acquisition-related costs have been categorized as non-recurring because they will be
material ta Private Client Group's results this year and will distort trend analysis.

Management and certain of BMO's stakeholders believe performance analysis is
enhanced by focusing on cash results and results excluding non-recurring items. These
adjustments effects are outlined above. However, securities requlators require that cor-
porations caution readers that earnings as adjusted for such items do not have standard-
ized meanings under GAAP and are unlikely to be comparable to similar measures used
by other companies.

Results Overview

Revenues and net income in each of the first and second quarters of
2007 benefited from modest gains on sales of branches. The com-
mentary that follows excludes those non-recurring items.

Net income of $255 million for the third quarter of 2002 was 22
per cent higher than in the third quarter of last year, driven by solid
revenue growth and effective cost containment, Net income rose 11
per cent from the second quarter largely due ta strong growth in
Canadian retail and business banking revenues. Year-to-date net
income was $711 million, an increase of $119 million from the
comparable period in 2007. This 20 per cent improvement was
driven by revenue growth, particularly in U.S. retail and business
banking, the benefit of cost containment measures in Canada and
the discontinuance of goodwill amortization. These increases were
partially offset by higher provisions for credit losses. The acquisition

of First National Bank of Joliet in the latter part of the third quarter
of last year contributed to both revenue and expense growth and to
increased profitability.

Strong volume growth in bath Canadian and U.S. retail and
business banking drove revenue growth of six per cent from the
third quarter of fiscal 2001. Margins declined in Canada and in the
United States, reflecting a low interest rate environment and costs
of 3 highly competitive retail lending market. Other income
increased slightly as core revenues improved and gains on securiti-
zations increased. The prior year had benefited from higher insur-
ance revenues.

Higher volumes and stable margins in Canadian retail and busi-
ness banking drove revenue growth of six per cent from the second
quarter. Revenues in U.S. retail and business banking were stable,
although margins declined. Three more calendar days in this most
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Reported (s millions, except as noted) Q3-2002 Increase/(Decrease) vs. Q3-2001  Increase/{Decrease) vs. Q2-2002 YTD-2002 increase/(Decrease) vs. YTD-2001

Net interest income (teb) S 832 S 59 8% S 35 4% § 2,440 5 166 7%
Other income 339 4 1% 37 12% 961 16 2%
Total revenues (teb) 1,171 63 6% 72 6% 3,401 182 6%
Provision for credit losses 70 6 9% (1) - 21 24 13%
Non-interest expense 688 (1) - 28 4% 2,044 33 2%
Income before income taxes and goodwill 413 58 17% 45 12% 1,146 125 12%
Income taxes {teb) 158 18 13% 19 12% 435 31 8%
Non-controlling interest in subsidiaries - 1 100% - - - 1 100%
Amortization of goodwill, net of income taxes - (6) (100)% - - - (17) (100)%
Net income $ 255 S 45 22% S 26 1% § 711 S 110 18%
Cash return on equity 26.6% (1.1)% 2.0% 25.0% (1.7)%
Average net interest margin 3.08% (0.12)% (0.04)% 3.12% (0.08)%
Non-interest expense-to-revenue ratio 58.7% (3.5)% (1.3)% 60.1% (2.4)%
Average assets $107,182 5 11,326 12% §S 2,437 2% $104,671 5 9,633 10%
Excluding non-recurring items

Revenues (teb) S 1,171 S 63 6% 3 72 6% $ 3,401 5 194 6%
Non-interest expense $ 688 S m - 5 28 4% $ 2,044 S 33 2%
Net income S 255 S 45 22% S 26 1% $ 711 $ 119 20%
Cash return on equity 26.6% (1.1)% 2.0% 25.0% (1.3)%
Non-interest expense-to-revenue ratio 58.7% (3.5)% (1.3)% 60.1% (2.6)%

recent quarter contributed to the averall increase in revenues.
Other income benefited from growth in core business as well as
higher gains an securitizations, partially offset by lower gains on
sales of securities.

Year-to-date revenues were six per cent higher than in the com-
parable period last year, driven by higher net interest earnings due
to significantly higher valumes in the United States and Canada and
the effects of favourable currency translation rates. Net interest
margins were substantially unchanged in the United States, but
were lower in Canada as a result of the low interest rate environ-
ment and the highly competitive lending landscape. Joliet, which
was acquired in the third quarter of last year, contributed two per-
centage points to year-to-date revenue grawth.

Non-interest expenses for the third quarter remained flat relative
to the third quarter of last year, contributing to an improvement in
the expense-to-revenye ratio from 62.2 per cent to 58.7 per cent.
Canadian retail and business banking costs were reduced through
the application of strong cost containment measures. Costs were
higher in the United States due to the Joliet acquisition, costs of
business expansion and the effects of currency translation. Non-
interest expenses increased four per cent from the second quarter.
The increase was attributable to three more calendar days in the
quarter and spending on key initiatives. Year-to-date non-interest
expenses increased two per cent from the comparable period in
2001. In the United States, expenses were higher as a result of sys-
tem conversion and integration costs for Joliet, business volume

lations occurring at a rate of approximately 100 branches per
month. Completion is targeted by the end of January 2003.

In Canada, most recent market share for the retail banking seq-
ment at 13.5 per cent was up 48 basis paints from the same
period the year before. Retail operating deposits” market share of
15.4 per cent was up 63 basis points and residential mortgages
owned and managed were up 34 basis points to 14.8 per cent.
BMO continued to rank second in the small business lending mar-
ket share for business foans $5 million and below as most recently
available data indicates its market share increased 46 basis points
year-over-year to 19.3 per cent.

The 'Help Provided' initiatives, implemented in November 2001,
lowered the cost of credit card and personal lending to help our
retail customers manage their financial affairs during the economic
downturn. "Help Provided’ has been a factor in volume growth.
Compared to the same period a year ago, year-to-date volumes in
Canada were up 10 per cent for residential mortgages and seven
per cent for consumer loans, after adding back the effects of secu-
ritizations. Year-to-date cash advances, cheque purchases and bal-
ance transfers for BMO MasterCard accounts increased 25.7 per
cent from the prior year.

- During the quarter, BMO expanded its Air Miles For Business pro-
gram, providing reward miles on a wide range of business banking
products and services, such as new account applications and
everyday business banking transactions.

The Group achieved strong growth in Canada, where loans and

growth in retail banking, expansion initiatives and currency transla-
tion. In Canada, effective cost control and revenue growth resulted
in an improvement in the expense-to-revenue ratio.

Business Developments and Achievements

The Group’s objectives and outlook for fiscal 2002 and the environ-

ment in which it operates are outlined on page 26 of the 2001

Annual Report. Notable business developments and achievements

in the third quarter in support of the Group’s 2002 objectives are

listed below.

« Pathway Connect, a fully integrated, state-of-the-art Windows
2000 platform, has been successfully taunched. The new platform
is an efficient tool far employees to manage both personal and
business customer information. The rollout is on track, with instal-
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acceptances, after adding back the effects of securitizations,
increased $7 billion or nine per cent from the third quarter of 2001
and $2 billion from the second quarter of 2002. Retail and com-
mercial deposits grew $7 billion or 24 per cent from the third
quarter of 2001 and $7 billion from the second quarter of 2002.
In Chicagaland, retail and small business loans increased $2.1 bil-
lion or 33 per cent from the third quarter of 2001, of which $632
million or 10 percentage points was attributable to the acquisition
of Joliet. This strong loan growth, coupled with seven per cent
organic deposit growth, strict cost contrel and the Joliet acquisition,
resulted in accelerating revenue and earnings momentum.
- Joliet is meeting its performance targets and has achieved double-
digit revenue growth and 20 per cent cost synergies.




Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition

Private Client Group

Reported (s millions, except as noted) 03-2002  Increase/(Decrease) vs. Q3-2001  Increase/{Decrease) vs. Q2-2002 YTD-2002 Increase/(Decrease) vs. YT0-2001
Revenues (teb) S 438 5 72 20% 5 (1 - % 1,264 S 120 10%
Provision for credit losses - - - (1) (100)% 1 - -
Non-interest expense 412 102 33% 29 8% 1,123 184 20%
Income before taxes and goodwill 26 (30) (53)% (29) (51)% 140 (64) (31)%
Income taxes (teb) 15 (14) (47)% (8) (32)% 58 (29) (34)%
Amortization of goodwill, net of income taxes - (2) (100)% - - - 7) (100)%
Net income $ 1 S (19 (55)% 21 (65)% § 82 S (28) (25)%
Cash feturn on equity 6.4% (8.7)% (5.4)% 11.2% (9.7)%
Average net interest margin 10.09% 0.40% 0.12% 10.21% 0.26%
Non-interest expense-to-revenue ratio 93.9% 9.5% 6.5% 88.8% 6.8%
Average assets $ 5,653 S 348 7% 5 163 3% $ 5,375 5 (99) 2)%
Excluding non-recurring items

Revenues (teb) $ 438 $ 72 20% 5 (1) - $ 1,264 S 120 10%
Non-interest expense 389 79 26% 6 2% 1,100 161 17%
Net incame 25 - - 7) (21)% 96 (14) (12)%
Cash return on equity 10.2% (4.9)% (1.6)% 12.7% (8.2)%
Non-interest expense-to-revenue ratio 88.7% 4.3% 1.3% 87.0% 5.0%

Results Overview

Private Client Group completed its acquisitions of CSFBdirect (now
part of Harrisdirect) in the secand quarter of 2002 and Guardian
Group of Funds in the latter part of the third quarter of 2001. The
Group's results for the second quarter of 2002 included two maonths
of (SFBdirect activities. Revenue.and expense growth comparatives
are affected by these acquisitions. (SFBdirect acquisition-related
costs of $23 million (S14 million after-tax) incurred in the third
quarter have been categorized as non-recurring for reporting pur-
poses. Further acquisition-related costs are anticipated and will also
be categorized as non-recurring in future periods. The second quar-
ter included $13 million of one-time CSFBdirect acquisition-related
items. The accompanying table reflects results and variances on
both a GAAP basis and on an excluding non-recurring items basis.
The commentary that follows excludes the $14 million after-tax
non-recurring acquisition-related costs.

The Group's results were quite encouraging in the context of the
challenging market environment. Net income of $25 million for the
quarter was cansistent with the third quarter of 2001, but would
have increased 56 million year-over-year excluding the results of the
acquired businesses. Net income declined $7 million from the sec-
ond quarter due to lower client-trading valumes, seasonality of the
businesses and increased amortization of intangible assets. An
adjustment to amortization expense was recorded in the current
quarter to reflect refinement of the CSFBdirect purchase price alloca-
tion following the campletion of the valuation of assets and liabili-
ties acquired. Cash-based net income for the quarter was $39
million, up $7 million from a year ago and down $1 million from
the second quarter. Year-to-date, net income declined $14 million
from the comparable period last year, or $6 million excluding
acquired businesses. The year-to-date comparative results are reflec-
tive of significantly lower client-trading volumes and equity markets
performance in 2002.

Revenues increased $72 million or 20 per cent from the third
quarter of last year, driven by acquisitions, while revenues in other
businesses were stable despite the weaker market environment.
Revenues were consistent with the second quarter as effects of
lower client-trading volumes in Full-Service Investing and Direct
Investing largely offset higher revenues from three manths of
(SFBdirect results. Year-to-date, revenues increased $120 million or
10 per cent from the comparable period last year. The growth was

e ey -

due to acquired businesses and the benefits of strategic initiatives,
partially offset by the effects of weaker equity markets and lower
client-trading volumes.

Business acquisitions in support of the Group’s long-term growth
strategies resulted in expense growth that has affected both quar-
terly and year-to-date comparatives. Excluding acquisitions, effective
cost management resulted in third quarter expenses declining from
the second quarter and remaining unchanged from the third quarter
of last year. By continuing to invest in the expansion of the Group's
North American distribution network and its U.S. wealth manage-
ment businesses, the Private Client Group remains committed to
executing its long-term growth strategy, balanced with continued
cost management in a relatively challenging market environment.

Business Developments and Achievements

The Group’s objectives and outlook for fiscal 2002 and the environ-
ment in which it operates are outlined on page 30 of the 2007 Annual
Report. Notable business developments and achievements in the third
quarter in support of the Group's 2002 objectives are listed below.

+ 0n July 26, 2002, the Group completed the acquisition of Morgan
Stanley Individual Investor Group online accounts. BMO Financial
Group's direct investing business is now sixth largest in North
America based on accounts and provides excellent growth opportu-
nities for both Harrisdirect and The Harris organization as a whole.
It expands Harrisdirects client base and provides the opportunity
to leverage the scale and technology developed through the acqui-
sition of (SFBdirect.

BMO’s market share of Canadian mutual fund assets increased to
3.64 per cent, up 4 basis points from the second quarter when
measured on a comparable basis. The third quarter was a difficult
periad in the industry but BMO's funds experienced the lowest rate
of redemptions of the five major Canadian banks on both a dollar
and percentage of assets basis.

« The Group’s $273 billion of assets under management and admin-
istration and term investments increased $35 billion ar 14 per cent
year-over-year.

During the quarter, (SFBdirect client retention rates and annualized
trades per account were in line with its peer group, after success-
ful integration of operations. Targets were exceeded for quarterly
revenues per trade, cost reductions and average assets per account.
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Harris Bank

Reported (us Gaap/uss millions, except as noted) Q3-2002 Increase/(Decrease) vs. Q3-2001  increase/(Decrease) vs, Q2-2002 YTD-2002 Increase/(Decrease) vs. YTD-2001
Net interest income (teb) $ 206 S 12 6% 5 (5) 2)% $ 629 S 73 13%
Other income 135 27 25% 10 8% 370 (14) ()%
Total revenue (teb) 341 39 13% 5 1% 999 59 6%
Pravision for credit losses 27 1 3% (6) (18)% 85 30 55%
Non-interest expense 196 14 8% (8) (4% 605 61 1%
Incame before income taxes and goodwill 118 24 26% 19 19% 309 (32) (9)%
Income taxes (teb) 42 10 31% 9 27% 106 (12) (10)%
Net income before goodwill 76 14 24% 10 15% 203 (20) (9)%
Amoftization of goodwill, net of income taxes - - - - - 1 (1) (50)%
Net income § 76 $ 14 2% § 10 15% $ 202 5 (19) (9)%
Net economic profit $ 32 $ 14 78% S 1 5200 § 69 s (24) (26)%
Cash return on equity (U.S. basis) 19.2% 3.6% 2.9% 16.9% (2.4)%
Average net interest margin (U.S. basis) 3.41% 0.33% (0.02)% 3.38% 0.46%
Cash non-interest expense-to-revenue ratio 55.2% (2.9)% (3.4)% 58.4% 2.3%
Average common equity $ 1,949 S 136 8% 5 (38) )% $ 1,966 5 220 13%
Average assets $ 27,116 S (1,274) (% S (795) (3)%n § 27,927 S (672) (2)%
Total risk-weighted assets $ 22,453 S 751 3% $ 98 - § 22,453 S 751 3%
Full-time equivalent staff 5,940 190 3% (166) (3)%

BMO’s U.S. business includes not only the businesses of Harris Bank, but also other businesses conducted through different ownership structures. The CSFBdirect business acquired in the second quarter is not
conducted through or included in the results of Harris Bank. The results of Harris Bank legal entity are included within the resuits of each of BMQ's operating groups and are outlined above.

Results Overview

On a U.S. dollar/U.S. GAAP basis, Harris Bank's net income was $76
million for the third quarter of 2002, an increase of 24 per cent
from the third quarter of last year and up 15 per cent from the
immediately preceding quarter. The year-over-year increase was
attributable to both continued strong revenue growth and effective
expense control. The improvement from the second quarter was due
to gains on sales of securities, cost reductions and lower provisions
for credit losses. On a year-to-date basis, net income decreased
from the comparable period in 2001. The decrease was due to last
year’s $60 million (536 million after-tax) gain on the sale of the
Harris Bank merchant card business to a unit of Bank of Montreal in
connection with the establishment of the Moneris Solutions joint
venture. This gain was not included in the Bank of Montreal consoli-
dated results because it was between related companies. Excluding
that gain, net income rose by $17 million or nine per cent. The
increase was attributable to business growth and acquisitions and to
higher gains on sales of investment securities, partially offset by
higher provisions for credit losses.

Revenues increased 13 per cent from the third quarter of last
year, with Joliet accounting for five percentage points of the
increase. Revenue growth benefited from continued growth in con-
sumer, mortgage and small business loans, higher net interest mar-
gins and higher gains on sales of investment securities. Net interest
margins improved by 33 basis points to 3.41 per cent due to the
declining interest rate environment in 2001 and a higher mix of
retail loans and deposits in 2002. Service charges and fees on
deposits also increased year-over-year. Revenues rose $5 million
from the second quarter due to higher gains on sales of investment
secufities and higher trust and investment management fees. These
increases were partially offset by lawer net interest earnings, due
primarily to a smaller investment partfolio. Year-to-date revenues
increased $59 million or six per cent from 2001. Excluding the gain
on the sale of the Harris Bank merchant card business, revenues
rose $119 million ar 14 per cent, with Joliet accounting for five per-
centage points of this increase.

Non-interest expenses were $14 millicn or eight per cent higher
than the third quarter of 2001. Excluding operating expense relating
to Joliet, expense growth was held to two per cent. Expenses were
reduced $8 million or four per cent from the second quarter, reflec-
tive of strong cost containment measures and the preceding quarter’s
inclusion of a $6 million one-time cost associated with the disposition
of BMO's New York trust subsidiary following the fiscal 2000 sale of
the corporate trust business. Yeai-to-date non-interest expenses were
up $61 million or 11 per cent from the comparable period last year.
Excluding the impact of the Joliet acquisition and the $6 million cne-
time cost above, expense growth was four per cent.

Business Developments and Achievements

Harris Bank's objectives and outlook for fiscal 2002 and the environ-

ment in which it operates are outlined on page 38 of the Bank of

Montreal 2001 Annual Report. Notable business developments and

achievements in the third quarter in support of Harris Bank's 2002

objectives are listed below.

« In Chicagoland Banking, retail and small business loans increased
$2.1 billion or 33 per cent from the third quarter of 2001, of which
$632 million or 10 percentage points was attributable to the acqui-
sition of joliet. This strong loan growth, coupled with seven per
cent organic deposit growth, strict cost control and the Joliet acqui-
sition, resulted in accelerating revenue and earnings momentum.

- joliet is meeting its performance targets and has achieved double-
digit revenue growth and 20 per cent cost synergies.

- Harris Nesbitt continues to focus on building highly profitable,
multi-product lead banking relationships in key mid-market/
Midwest sectors and national specialty sectors. Despite a difficult
economic environment in the U.S. Midwest, Harris Nesbitt contin-
ues to be successful in winning new mandates and adding new
lead relationships to its portfolio this fiscal year.




‘Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Statement of Income

For the three months ended For the nine months ended
July 31, April 30, January 31, October 31, July 31, July 31, July 31,
(Unaudited) (Canadian § in millions except per share amounts) 2002 2002 2002 2001 2001 2002 2001
Interest, Dividend and Fee Income
Loans $ 1,718 S 1,646 S 1,851 S 2,131 S 2,301 $ 5,215 S 7,558
Securities 386 399 457 510 568 1,242 1,909
Deposits with banks 123 125 148 193 201 396 699
2,227 2,170 2,456 2,834 3,070 6,853 10,166
Interest Expense
Deposits 768 708 849 1,228 1,389 2,325 4,955
Subordinated debt 71 76 30 86 88 227 265
Other liabilities 197 215 266 351 406 678 1,616
1,036 999 1,195 1,665 1,883 3,230 6,836
Net Interest Income 1,191 1,171 1,261 1,169 1,187 3,623 3,330
Provision for credit losses 160 320 180 546 117 660 434
Net Interest Income After
Provision for Credit Losses 1,031 851 1,081 623 1,070 2,963 2,896
Other Income
Deposit and payment sefvice charges 188 178 175 175 170 541 495
Lending fees 75 77 75 88 85 227 264
Capital market fees 269 292 213 235 243 774 741
Card services 71 64 64 50 59 199 154
investment management and custodial fees 82 76 81 87 85 239 249
Mutual fund revenues 79 80 71 70 61 230 181
Trading revenues 70 28 46 75 91 144 415
Securitization revenues 76 124 58 71 78 258 260
Other fees and commissions 16 103 134 (101) 131 253 713
926 1,022 917 750 1,003 2,865 3,472
Net Interest and Other Income 1,957 1,873 1,998 1,373 2,073 5,828 6,368
Non-interest Expense
Salaries and employee benefits 827 848 850 760 822 2,525 2,452
Premises and equipment 318 294 291 319 288 903 834
Communications 41 48 48 46 46 137 148
Other expenses 274 271 258 312 254 803 757
1,460 1,461 1,447 1,437 1,410 4,368 4,191
Amartization of intangible assets 28 15 15 12 11 58 31
Total non-interest expense 1,488 1,476 1,462 1,449 1,421 4,426 4,222
Income Before Provision for
Income Taxes, Non-Controlling Interest
in Subsidiaries and Goodwill 469 397 536 (76) 652 1,402 2,146
Income taxes 109 81 143 (109) 183 338 610
360 316 388 33 469 1,064 1,536
Non-controlling interest 14 15 16 14 11 45 28
Net income Before Goodwill 346 301 372 19 458 1,019 1,508
Amartization of goodwill,
net of applicable income tax (Note 2) - - - 15 14 - 41
Net Income S 346 S 301 $ 372 $ 4 S 444 $ 1,019 S 1,467
Dividends Declared - Preferred shares S 21 S 20 3 17 $ 14 S 20 $ 58 5 66
- Common shares $ 148 S 147 5 147 5 137 S 142 $ 442 S 431
Average Number of
Common Shares Outstanding 491,283,048 490,368,847 489,498,812 499,013,245 502,373,065 490,383,731 515,422,404
Average Assets $ 247,306 $ 243,677 $ 246,890 § 245,757 S 234,041 $245,983 $ 242,402
Earnings Per Share Before Goodwill
Basic $ 0.66 S 0.57 5 0.73 S 0.03 S 0.87 S 1.96 ) 2.80
Diluted 0.65 0.57 0.71 0.04 0.85 1.93 273
Earnings Per Share
Basic 0.66 0.57 0.73 0.00 0.85 1.96 2,72
Diluted 0.65 0.57 0.71 0.00 0.83 1.93 2.66

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at
{Unaudited) {Canadian $ in mitlions) july 31, 2002 Aprit 30, 2002 January 31, 2002 October 31, 2007 July 31, 2001
Assets
Cash Resources $ 16,551 $ 17,977 $ 18,876 $ 17,656 $ 17,355
Securities
Investment 19,019 20,275 22,257 21,470 21,958
Trading 24,908 24,191 19,240 16,200 19,670
Loan substitutes 6 6 6 6 6
43,933 44,472 41,503 37,676 41,634
Loans
Residential mortgages 46,638 44,795 43,500 41,941 41,106
Consumer instalment and other personal loans 20,698 20,197 19,463 19,107 18,777
Credit card foans 1,635 1,506 1,528 1,527 1,525
Loans to businesses and governments 56,642 57,175 58,034 61,249 59,354
Securities purchased under resale agreements 14,910 16,571 15,565 14,954 17,592
140,523 140,244 138,090 138,778 138,354
Allowance for credit losses (Note 3) (1,880) (2,095) (2,023) (1,949) (1,661)
138,643 138,149 136,067 136,829 136,693
Other
Customers’ liability under acceptances 7,120 7,647 7,488 7,936 7,400
Premises and equipment 2,092 2,090 2,094 2,170 2,075
Other assets (Note 2) 41,774 29,673 33,412 37,142 25,046
50,986 39,410 42,994 47,248 34,521
Total Assets $ 250,113 $ 240,008 $ 239,440 $ 239,409 $ 230,203
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Deposits
Banks $ 16,892 S 17,787 5 20,022 § 20,539 5 19,188
Businesses and governments 68,292 71,942 64,908 66,132 65,835
Individuals 74,016 70,630 69,828 67,619 65,980
159,200 160,359 154,758 154,290 151,003
Other Liabilities
Acceptances 7,120 7,647 7,488 7,936 7,400
Securities sold but not yet purchased 7,720 7,837 7,775 6,609 6,437
Securities sold under repuichase agreements 20,521 20,281 20,121 17,480 22,867
Other 39,560 28,002 33,249 37,738 25,769
74,921 63,767 68,633 69,763 62,473
Subordinated Debt 4,268 4,405 4,672 4,674 4,920
Shareholders’ Equity
Share capital (Nate 5) 4,962 4,937 4,922 4,425 4,919
Retained earnings 6,762 6,540 6,455 6,257 6,888
11,724 11,477 11,377 10,682 11,807
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $ 250,113 $ 240,008 § 239,440 S 235,409 $ 230,203

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integrai part of this statement.
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Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow

Far the three months ended For the nine manths ended
(Unaudited) (Canadian $ in millions) July 31, 2002 July 31, 2001 July 31, 2002 July 31, 20017
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Net income $ 346 $ 444 $ 1,019 S 1,467
Adjustments to determine net cash flows
Provision for credit losses 160 117 660 434
Amortization of premises and equipment 95 101 295 294
Amortization of intangible assets 31 15 68 41
Amortization of goodwiil (Note 2) - 16 - 46
Gain on sale of securitized loans (38) (19) (116) (32)
Write-down of investment securities 158 1 274 48
Future income tax expense 8 62 223 (149)
Net (gain) on sate of investment securities (42) (3) (118) (394)
Change in accrued interest
Decrease in interest receivable 85 192 238 541
Decrease in interest payable (96) (106) (329) (294)
Net increase (decrease) in deferred loan fees 4 3 (33) 1
Net (increase) decrease in unrealized gains and amounts receivable
on derivative contracts (4,255) 883 1,400 (809)
Net increase (decrease) in unrealized losses and amounts payable
on derivative contracts 4,169 (790) (1,488) 1,679
Net {increase) decrease in trading securities (717) 1,176 (8,708) 2,324
Net increase (decrease) in current income taxes payable (14) 215 (213) 204
Changes in other items and accruals, net (346) 1,234 (1,533) 1,103
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities (452) 3,541 (8,361) 6,504
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Net increase (decrease) in depasits (1,159) (4,732) 4,910 (7,106)
Net increase (decrease) in securities sold but not yet purchased 117) (125) 1,111 (2,916)
Net increase (decrease) in securities sold under repurchase agreements 240 (1,490) 3,041 2,883
Net increase (decrease) in liabilities of subsidiaries (339) 528 (439) 121
Praceeds from issuance of securities of a subsidiary - - - 400
Repayment of subordinated debt (150) - (400) -
Redemption of preferred shares - - - (250)
Proceeds from issuance of preferred shares - - 478 -
Praceeds from issuance of common shares 19 38 60 134
Share issue expense, net of applicable income tax - - 7 -
Common shares repurchased for cancellation - (436) - (1,260}
Dividends paid (169) (162) (500) (497)
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities (1,675) (6,379) 8,254 (8,486)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Net (increase) decrease in interest bearing deposits with banks 1,113 1,437 (111) 1,316
Purchase of investment securities (13,202) (7,668) (26,397) (26,004)
Maturities of investment securities 10,967 5,786 21,533 19,850
Praceeds from sales of investment securities 3,663 2,651 7,299 9,703
Net (increase) in loans and loan substitute securities (2,514) (2,111) (2,921) (1,909)
Proceeds from securitization of assets 237 90 519 769
Net (increase) decrease in securities purchased under resale agreements 1,661 2,462 44 (1,284)
Premises and equipment - net purchases (96) (93) (206) (192)
Acquisition of businesses (Note 4) (15) (124) (869) (245)
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities 1,814 2,430 (1,109) 2,004
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (313) (408) (1,216) 22
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period 2,556 2,574 3,459 2,144
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period 2,243 S 2,166 S 2,243 S 2,166

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
T Comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

For the nine months ended

{Unaudited) (Canadian $ in millions} july 31, 2002 July 31, 2001
Preferred Shares
Balance at beginning of period $ 1,050 5 1,681
Praceeds from the issue of preferred shares (Note 5) 478 -
Redemption of preferred shares - (250)
Translation adjustment an shares issued in a foreign currency (3) 2
Balance at £nd of Period 1,525 1,433
Common Shares
Balance at beginning of period 3,375 3,173
Issued under the Shareholder Dividend Reinvestment and Share Purchase Plan 33 26
issued under the Stock Option Plan 27 102
issued on the exchange of shares of subsidiary corporations 2 6
Issued on the acquisition of businesses - 400
(Cancellation of stock options granted on acquisition of an investment - (22)
Repurchased for cancellation - (199)
Balance at End of Period 3,437 3,486
Retained Earnings
Balance at beginning of period 6,257 7,087
Cumulative impact of adopting Future Employee 8enefits standard,
net of applicable income tax - (250)
6,257 6,837
Net income 1,019 1,467
Dividends - Preferred shares (58) (66)
- Common shares (442) (431)
Unrealized gain (loss) on transtation of net investment in foreign
operations, net of hedging activities and applicable income tax 7 25
Recoagnition of unrealized translation loss on disposition of an
investment in a foreign operation - 99
Gain on cancellation of stock aptions granted on acquisition
of an investment, net of applicable income tax - 18
Common shares repurchased for cancellation - (1,061)
Share issue expense, net of applicable income tax (7) -
Balance at £nd of Period 6,762 6,888
Total Shareholders’ Equity $11,724 $ 11,807

The accompanying notes to cansolidated financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the nine months ended july 31, 2002 {Unaudited) {Canadian § in millions except as noted)

Note 1: Basis of Presentation J

These consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction
with our consolidated financial statements for the year ended
October 31, 2001 as set out on pages 57 to 85 of our 2001 Annual
Report. These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles

Note 2: Change in Accounting Policy J

On November 1, 2001, we changed our accounting for goodwill and
other intangible assets as required by CICA Handbook section 3062
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”. Under the new standard,
goodwill is no longer amortized to income over time, and is subject
to a periadic impairment review to ensure that the fair value remains
greater than, or equal to, book value. Any excess of book value over
fair value would be charged to income in the period in which the
impairment is determined. We have adopted this new accounting
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including the accounting requirements of our requlator, the
Superintendent of Financial Institutions Canada, using the same
accounting policies and methads of computation as were used for our
consolidated financial statements for the year ended October 31,
2001, except as described in note 2.

standard prospectively. As a result of this change in accounting policy,
amortization of goodwill decreased by $14, net of applicable income
tax of 52, for the three months, and by $43, net of applicable income
tax of $6, for the nine months ended july 31, 2002.

We have completed the impairment test required upon adoption
of the new standard and have determined that an impairment charge
was not necessary.

' |



Our goodwill balances by operating segment are as follows:

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Personal and Private Investment Emfisys and Total

Commercial Client Group Client Group Banking Group Corporate Support Consolidated

Balance as at November 1, 2001 S 452 S 286 5 58 5 2 5 798
Effects of foreign exchange and other (2) ~ - - (2)
Balance as at January 31, 2002 450 286 58 2 796
Acquisition during the quarter - 643 - - 643
Disposal during the quarter (2) - - - (2)
Effects of foreign exchange and other 2 (10) - - (8)
Balance as at April 30, 2002 450 919 58 2 1,429
Acquisition during the quarter - 10 - - 10
Adjustments related to previous acquisitions - (9) - - (9)
Effects of foreign exchange and other 10 7 - - 17
Balance as at July 31, 2002 S 460 S 927 S 58 S 2 S 1,447

Further information on this new accounting policy is contained in note 8 to our consolidated financial statements for the year ended

October 31, 2001 on page 68 of our 2001 Annua! Report.

Note 3: Allowance for Credit Losses ,J

The allowance for credit losses recarded in our Consolidated Balance
Sheet is maintained at a level which we consider adequate to absorb
probable credit losses in our on- and off-balance sheet portfolios. The
change in our allowance for credit losses is set out in the following
table. Included in our provision for credit losses for the nine months
ended July 31, 2002 is 3 $140 increase in our specific allowance,

primarily attributable to BCE's announcement that it would cease to
provide long-term support to Teleglabe Inc. Included in our provision
for credit losses for the nine months ended July 31, 2001 was a $100
increase in our general allowance.

Changes in our allowance for credit losses are:

For the three months ended

For the nine months ended

July 31, 2002 July 31, 2001 July 31, 2002 July 31, 2001
Balance at beginning of period 5 2,097 5 1,656 S5 1,949 S 1,597
Provision for credit losses 160 117 660 434
Recoveries 19 12 51 30
Write-offs (405) (132) (788) (411)
Other, including foreign exchange rate changes 9 8 8 11
Balance at end of period $ 1,880 S 1,661 $ 1,880 S 1,661

Note 4: Acquisition of CSFBdirect, Inc.

On February 4, 2002 we completed the acquisition of all of the out-
standing voting shares of CSFBdirect, Inc., a New Jersey-based direct
investing firm, previously owned by Credit Suisse First Boston for total
cash consideration of $854. The results of CSFBdirect, Inc.'s operations
since that date have been included in our consolidated financial
statements. The acquisition of (SFBdirect, tnc. significantly increases
our U.S. client base and provides an important national franchise to
our existing integrated wealth management business in the United

States. The customer relationships intangible asset will be amortized
over 15 years on an accelerated basis. The estimated fair value of the
covenant not to compete is included in other intangible assets and

will be amortized over 5 years on a straight line basis.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition.
The reclassification of the purchase price between goodwill and
intangibles is based on the final valuation of the intangible assets.

(SFBdirect, Inc.

Cash resources
Premises and equipment
Other assets
Other
Customer relationships
Other intangible asset
Goodwill

Other liabilities

Purchase price

$ 59
10

6
200
9
597
812
873
19
19
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Note 5: Share Capital J

During the nine months ended July 31, 2002, we issued 12,000,000
5.95% Non-Cumulative Class B Preferred Shares, Series 10, at a price

Share Capital Information (3)

of USS25.00 per share, representing an aggregate issue price
of US$300.

July 31, 2002

Principal

Number Amaount Convertible intg...
Preferred Shares outstanding

(lass B - Series 3 16,000,000 S 400 common shares (b)
(lass B - Series 4 8,000,000 200 common shares (b)
Class B - Series 5 8,000,000 200 -
Class B - Series 6 10,000,000 250 common shares (b)
Class B - Series 10 12,000,000 475 common shares {b)

Total Preferred Share Capital 1,525
Common Shares outstanding 491,678,555 3,437 -

Total Share Capital § 4,962

Stock options issued under Stock Option Plan

n/a 40,060,514 common shares

(a) For additional informatian refer to note 14 to our consolidated financial statements for the year ended Qctober 31, 2001 on pages 71 and 72 of our 2001 Annual Report.

{b) The number of shares issuable on conversion is not determinable until the date of conversion.
n/a - not applicable

Note 6: Accounting for Stock Options J

When we grant stock options under our Stock Option Plan for desig-

nated officers and employees, no compensation expense is recognized.
When stock options are exercised, we include the amount of proceeds
in shareholders’ equity. Under the fair value method of accounting for
stock options, we would have recognized compensation expense over

the vesting period of the stock options, based on the fair value of the
stock options on the grant date. If we had always used the fair value
method of accounting for stock options, our results would have been
impacted as shown in the following table:

For the three months ended For the nine months ended

July 31, 2002 July 31, 2001 July 31, 2002 July 31, 2001
Pro forma Net income S 334 S 434 $ 984 $ 1,437
Pro forma Earnings Per Share - Basic 0.64 0.83 1.89 266
Pro forma Earnings Per Share - Diluted 0.63 0.81 1.86 2.60

Beginning on November 1, 2002 we will change our accounting pol-
icy for stock options to recognize compensation expense based on

the fair value method of accounting for all stock options granted
from that date.

Note 7: United States Generally Accepted Accounting Principles J

Reporting under United States generally accepted accounting princi-
ples (US GAAP) would have resulted in consolidated net income of
$316, basic earnings per share of $0.60 and diluted earnings per
share of 50.59 for the three months ended July 31, 2002 compared
to $398, 50.75 and $0.73, respectively, for the three months ended
July 31, 2001. For the nine months ended July 31, 2002, reporting
under US GAAP would have resulted in consalidated net income of
$970, basic earnings per share of $1.86 and diluted earnings per
share of $1.83, compared to $1,520, $2.81 and $2.75, respectively,
for the nine months ended July 31, 2001.

As a result of an adjustment related to the sale of our invest-
ment in Grupo Financiero BBVA Bancomer, we have restated our US
GAAP consolidated net income from $1,439 to $1,520, our US GAAP
basic earnings per share from $2.66 to $2.81 and our US GAAP
diluted earnings per share from $2.60 to $2.75 for the nine months
ended July 31, 2001,
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Note 8: Subsequent EveU

On August 27, 2002, we redeemed all of our outstanding $459,
5.55 per cent Series A, Medium Term Notes due 2007, at a

redemption price of 100 per cent of the principal amount plus
unpaid accrued interest to the redemption date.




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 9: Operating and Geographic Segmentation ,J

Revenue, Net Income and Average Assets by Operating Group

pPersonal and Commercial
Client Group (a)

Private
Client Graup (b)

Investment
Banking Group (¢)

emnfisys and
Corporate Suppart {d)

Total Consolidated

July 31, July 31, July 31, July 31, July 31, July 31, July 31, July 37, July 31, July 31,
For the three months ended 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
Net Interest Income and Other income (e)
Canada $ 943 S 908 § 286 S 272 $ 142 S 342 $ (46) S (3) $1,325 $1,519
United States 212 173 152 92 329 365 37 14 730 644
Other Countries 16 27 - 2 66 42 6 - 88 71
Total $1,171 $ 1,108 $ 438 S 366 $ 537 S 749 $ 3) S 11 $2,143 52,234
Net Income
Canada $ 196 S 165 0§ 28 & 23 S 2 5 N2 $ (45) § 27 S 181 S 287
United States 47 24 (16) 2 73 99 13 (4) 117 121
Other Countries 12 21 (1) 33 16 4 (1) 48 36
Total $ 255 5 210 0§ 11§ 25 $ 108 S5 187 5 (28) S 22 0§ 346 S 444
Average Assets (S billions)
Canada $ 883 $ 811 $ 1.8 & 2t $ 731 § 601 $ (5.9) S5 (54) $157.3 $ 1379
United States 18.6 14.6 3.8 3.2 48.7 57.0 1.1 1.9 72.2 76.7
Other Countries 0.3 0.1 0.1 - 17.2 19.1 0.2 0.2 17.8 19.4
Total $107.2 $ 958 § 57 & 53 $139.0  § 1362 $ (4.6) S (33) $247.3 $.234.0
For the nine months ended
Net Interest Income and Other Income (g)
Canada $2,714  $2673 % 886 5 89 & 660 5 971  § (151) S (80) $4,109  $ 4423
United States 636 487 380 276 1,056 1,147 144 40 2,216 1,950
Other Countries 51 59 (2) 9 184 143 12 328 245 539
Total $3,401 53,219 $1,264 $ 1,144 $1,900 § 2,261 S 5 5 288 $6,570  §6,912
Net Income
Canada $ 541 6 488 0§ 91 S 95 § 79§ 202 $(226) S (27) § 485 S 758
United States 130 67 6) 10 271 313 1 (63) 396 327
Other Countries 40 46 (3) 5 95 58 6 273 138 382
Total $ 711 S 601 % 82 5 110 % 445 5 573§ (219) $ 183 $1,019 S 1,467
Average Assets (5 billions)
Canada $ 86.0 5 806 5 1.8 S 22 $ 70.8 5 59.7 $ (5.6) S (51) $153.0 $137.4
United States 18.5 14.2 3.4 32 52.2 65.2 1.2 1.0 75.3 83.6
Other Countries 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 17.2 20.5 0.2 0.7 17.7 21.5
Total $1047 6 950 § 53 $ 55 §140.2 $1454 § (4.2) S (3.4) $246.0 $ 2425

(3) Persanal and Commercial Client Group (P&C) provides financial services, including Electronic Financial
Services, to households in Canada and the United States through its branch and automated banking
machine networks, electronic banking products including BMO mbanx Direct services, credit card
and telebanking.

(b) Private Client Group (PCG) offers its clients a broad array of wealth management products and
services, including retall investment products, direct and full service investing, private banking and
institutional asset managernent.

(¢) Investment Banking Group (1BG) combines all of the businesses sefving corporate, government and
institutiona! clients under ane umbrella. it offers clients complete financial solutions across the entire
batance sheet, including treasury services, foreign exchange, trade finance, corporate lending, cash
management, securitization, public and private debt and equity underwriting. IBG also offers financial
advisory services in mergers and acquisitions and restructurings, while praviding its investing clients
with research, sales and trading services.

{d) Corporate Support includes the corporate units that provide expertise and governance support for the
Bank in areas such as strategic planning, law, finance, internal audit, risk management, corporate
cammunications, human resources and learning. The Emfisys Group, the technology and e-business
qgroup, provides information technology planning, strategy and development services, together with
transaction processing and real estate services for Bank of Montreal. Emfisys is also responsible for
the creation, development and support of the Bank’s e-business services. Emfisys and Corporate
Support includes residual revenues and expenses representing the differences between actual
amounts incurred and the amounts allocated to operating groups.

(e) Reported on a taxable equivalent basis. The taxable equivalent adjustment was $26 for the 3 months

ended july 31, 2002, and $82 for the 9 months ended July 31, 2002. The comparative taxable
equivalent adjustments for 2001 were $44 and $110, respectively.
Prior periods are restated to give effect to the current period's organization structure and presentation
changes. During the nine months ended July 31, 2002, the North American Cash Management business
was transferred from Emfisys to the Investment Banking Group, to align product distribution more
effectively with client coverage.
Basis of presentation of results of operating groups:
Expenses are matched against the revenues to which they relate, Indirect expenses, such as overhead
expenses and any revenue that may be associated thereto, are allocated to the aperating groups using
appropriate allocation formulas applied on a consistent basis. For each currency, the net income effect
of funds transferred from any group with a surplus to any group with a shortfall is at market rates for
the currency and appropriate term.
Provisions for credit losses allocated to the banking groups are based on expected losses over an
economic cycle. Differences between expected loss provisions and required provisions under generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) are allocated to the Corporate Suppart Group.
Segrmentation of assets by geographic region is based upon the geographic location of the unit
responsible for managing the related assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.
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On the Cover

Planning for retirement. When Fidelis Umeh of Chicago, Illinois steps down from the helm of his company,

he and his wife Bonnie will continue to ook to Harris Bank, “our financial partner forever,” to help them
achieve their retirement goals. Among them, the development of a permanent, multi-mitlion dolfar public health
education program in Fidelis” native Nigeria. Harris Bank is a Chicago-based subsidiary of Bank of Montreat.

Shareholder Dividend Reinvestment and Share Purchase Plan
Average market price

May 2002 $37.00
June 2002 $35.39
July 2002 $33.79

For dividend information, change in shareholder address
or to advise of duplicate mailings, please contact
Computershare Trust Company of Canada

1500 University Street, Suite 700

Montreal, Quebec H3A 358

Telephone: 1-800-332-0095 (Canada and United States)
Telephane: 514-982-7800 (all other countries)

Fax: 514-982-7664

E-mail: caregistryinfo@computershare.com

For other shareholder information, please contact
Shareholder Services

Corporate Secretary’s Department

One First Canadian Place, 21st Floor

Toronto, Ontario M5X 1AY

Telephone: 416-867-6785

Fax: 416-867-6793

E-mail: corp.secretary@bmo.com

For further information on this report, please contact
investar Relations Department

P.0. Box 1

One First Canadian Place, 18th Floor

Toronto, Ontario M5X 1A1

To review financial results online,

please visit our web site at www.bmo.com BMO 9 Financial G’I'()up



EXHIBITS

Section 906 Certification signed by Tony Comper, Chief Executive Officer, Bank
of Montreal

Section 906 Certification signed by Karen Maidment, Chief Financial Officer,
Bank of Montreal




SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements. of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized.

Bank of Montreal

Date: September 19, 2002 By_/s/ SHARON SANDALL

Sharon Sandall
Senior Assistant Secretary and
Shareholder Services Manager




CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, the undersigned officer of Bank of Montreal (the “Bank™),
hereby certifies that the quarterly report for the period ended July 31, 2002 (the “Report™)
fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) and 15(d), as applicable, of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that the information contained in the Report
presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of

the Bank.

Tony Comper
Chief Executive Officer

Dated: Sevnt. 5/02

The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350 and is
not being filed as part of the Report or as a separate disclosure document.




CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, the undersigned officer of Bank of Montreal (the “Bank”),
hereby certifies that the quarterly report for the period ended July 31, 2002 (the “Report™)
fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) and 15(d), as applicable, of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that the information contained in the Report

presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of
the Bank.

Karen Maidment
Chief Financial Officer

ot Jeot 5o ~d Koot

The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350 and is
not being filed as part of the Report or as a separate disclosure document.




